2019 - 2020

Course Description Guide for Middle School Students

Norfolk Public Schools The cornerstone of a proudly diverse community

NPS Mission Statement

The mission of Norfolk Public Schools, the cornerstone of a proudly diverse community, is to ensure that all students maximize their academic potential, develop skills for lifelong learning and are successful contributors to a global society, as distinguished by:

- ✤ Courageous advocacy for all students
- Family and community investment
- Data-driven personalized learning
- Strong and effective leadership teams
- Shared responsibility for Teaching and Learning
- ✤ Access to rigorous and rewarding college and career readiness opportunities

NPS Board and Division Priorities

- Ensure full accreditation
- Increase academic achievement of all students raise floor and ceiling simultaneously to close achievement gaps
- ✤ Improve climate, safety and attendance
- ✤ Become a School Board of Distinction
- Promote Norfolk Public Schools to reflect outstanding accomplishments of staff, teachers and students
- Develop and coordinate a capital improvement plan for facilities and technology to enhance teaching and learning
- * Attract, retain, and help to develop strong academic families and highly qualified teachers and staff

NPS School Counseling Mission Statement

The school counseling program, based on national, state, and local standards in collaboration with all stakeholders (students, parents, faculty, community members, and local businesses), has been developed to ensure that all students (K-12) regardless of individual differences acquire the academic, career and personal/social competencies needed to access exciting options and opportunities upon graduation in order to become successful, productive contributors to society.

The Division thanks the Middle School Course Description Guide Committee for their efforts to produce and update this handbook. A special thanks is given to the following Committee Members and Contributors:

Bruce Brady, Sr. Coordinator, History Dept. Adrienne Britton, Sr. Coordinator, Science Dept. Dr. Michael Cataldo, Exec. Director, Curriculum & Instruction John Coleman, Exec. Director, Secondary Schools Melinda Collard, Information Systems Specialist Gwen Collins, Sr. Coordinator, English Dept. Thomas Etheridge, Sr. Coordinator, Student Information Systems Georgeanna Fellio, Coordinator Valerie Ford, Curriculum Bruce Brady, Sr. Coordinator, History Dept. Karla Stead, Curriculum Georgeanna Fellio, Sr. Coordinator, Art Dept. Kenyetta A. Goshen, Career & Technical Education April Harmon, Sr. Coordinator, School Counseling & Guidance Meredith Holson, Sr. Coordinator, Foreign Language Dept. Darrick Person, Sr. Coordinator, Health, Safety, & Physical Educ. Danielle Roby, Sr. Coordinator, Music Dept. Rhonda White, Sr. Coordinator, Mathematics Dept.



School Year 2019-2020

Dear Students,

The Course Description Guide for High School Students is designed to provide you and your parents/ guardians information that will assist you in choosing courses that lead to a meaningful high school education and fulfill your graduation requirements. Whether you plan to enter community college, a four-year institution, the military, a workforce training program or the job market, choosing beneficial courses now will establish a strong foundation for your future college and career goals.

You are encouraged to take advantage of every opportunity available to you during your educational career. Take some time to review this course description book and the options available to you. Meet with your school counselor, your parents/guardians, and your teachers to discuss what education and marketable skills you'll need to achieve your goals. Remember, this is a time to build your foundation for future success. Do not be afraid to stretch your mind and take courses that will challenge and better prepare you for the exciting world you will enter after high school.

While the administration and the entire Norfolk Public Schools staff recognize the importance of being consistent in applying the procedures of this handbook, we also recognize the great diversity in our students' needs and the multiple career pathways available. As such, we will continue to work collaboratively to identify the courses to best meet students' needs. We will also continue to work towards providing engaging educational opportunities to prepare students for life after Norfolk Public Schools.

You have a team of administrators, counselors, teachers, and staff who are committed to making sure you receive the necessary skills and knowledge to prepare you for a rewarding career and to be active participants in the economy and the community. If you have any questions, please contact the Department of School Counseling and Guidance at your school for assistance. We are here to help you set your goals and to ensure you receive the best education possible. Always strive to better yourself and know that you can accomplish your dreams!

Sincerely,

Dr. Char d. D. long

Sharon I. Byrdsong, Ed. D. Acting Superintendent of Schools

Table of Contents

Contents

NPS Mission Statement	i
NPS Board and Division Priorities	i
NPS School Counseling Mission Statement	i
GENERAL INFORMATION	1
Middle School Directory	2
Middle School Scheduling	3
Attendance Requirements	4
Truancy	4
Homework and Grading	4
Promotion and Retention Policies	. 5
Summer School	. 5
Grading Scale	. 5
Standards of Learning Tests	. 5
Purging/Expunging Grades	. 5
Academic and Career Plans	6
Extra-Curricular Activities/Athletics	6
Middle School Specialty Programs	. 6
Academy of Discovery at Lakewood	6
The Academy of International Studies at Rosemont	6
Pre-Medical, Health & Engineering Program at Blair	6
Young Scholars Program	6
Virtual Virginia	. 7
COURSE OFFERINGS	. 8
Art	. 9
English	11
English Course Sequence	.11
Foreign Language ESL	14
Foreign Language Course Sequence	
Health, Safety and Physical Education	17
History Social Science	18
History & Social Science Course Sequence	.18
Mathematics	21
Mathematics Course Sequence	.21
Music	24
Science	26
Career and Technical Education (CTE)	29

.29
.30
.31
33
35
36
.36
.36
.36
.36
.37
.37
.38
.38
.39
.39
.39
.40
.40
.40
41
41
42
.42
.42
.43
.43
.43
44
.44
.44
.45
.45
46
.46
.47
.48
.48

GENERAL INFORMATION



Middle School Directory

Middle School Office Hours 7:30 a.m. - 3:30 p.m.

Academy for Discovery at Lakewood

1701 Alsace Avenue Norfolk VA 23509 Phone: 757-628-2477 Fax: 757-628-2486

Academy of International Studies at

Rosemont (AIOS) 1330 Branch Road Norfolk, VA 23513 Phone: 757-852-4610 Fax: 757-852-4615

Azalea Gardens Middle School

7721 Azalea Garden Road Norfolk, VA 23518 Phone: 757-531-3000 Fax: 757-531-3013

Blair Middle School

730 Spotswood Avenue Norfolk, VA 23517 Phone: 757-628-2400 Fax: 757-628-2422

Crossroads (K-8) School

8021 Old Ocean View Road Norfolk, VA 23518 Phone: 757-531-3050 Fax: 757-531-3046

Middle School Student Hours 8:15 a.m. – 2:45 p.m.

Ghent (K-8) School

200 Shirley Avenue Norfolk, VA 23517 Phone: 757-628-2565 Fax: 757-628-2564

Lake Taylor Middle School

1380 Kempsville Road Norfolk, VA 23502 Phone: 757-892-3230 Fax: 757-892-3240 **Northside Middle School** 8720 Granby Street Norfolk, VA 23503 Phone: 757-531-3150 Fax: 757-531-3144

Norview Middle School

6325 Sewells Point Road Norfolk, VA 23513 Phone: 757-852-4600 Fax: 757-852-4590

Ruffner Academy

610 May Avenue Norfolk, VA 23504 Phone: 757-628-2466 Fax: 757-628-2465

Southside STEM Academy at

Campostella (K-8) 1106 Campostella Road Norfolk, VA 23523 Phone: 757-494-3850 Fax: 757-628-2548

Middle School Scheduling

The Academic Year. The regular academic year is at least 180 days, divided into four nine-week periods or two 18-week semesters. Most courses are one year (two semesters) in length and students receive a final grade at the end of the school year. Semester-long courses are also available, which require final grades at the end of each semester.

Types of Courses. There are generally two types of courses, core courses and elective courses. *Core courses* include Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, and Social Studies. *Elective courses* include classes such as Foreign Languages, music, art, technology, and business. Some of these courses are high school level courses, which award high school credit upon successful completion and should be selected by highly-motivated students. *Health and Physical Education* courses are required of all middle school students and meet for the full year.

Schedule Requirements. All students are required to take four core classes (Language Arts, Math, Social Studies, and Science), health/physical education, and at least one elective. Teachers make recommendations for students to participate in *honors* classes based on student academic achievement, assessments, and classroom performance. Students in *special education* classes will be scheduled in accordance with their Individualized Education Plan (IEP).

Block Scheduling. In a block scheduling format, the student attends four classes each day and each class lasts for approximately 90 minutes each day. Classes are scheduled on an Odd (A)/Even (B) day schedule. Odd (A) days consist of Bells 1, 3, 5, and 7, whereas Even (B) days consist of Bells 2, 4, 6, and 8. In NPS middle schools, Language Arts and Mathematics classes are double-block scheduled, which means students attend these courses daily. Students are given 30 minutes for *lunch*, which may occur "during" a class. For example, students scheduled for lunch at 10:15 a.m., during their Science block, may go to Science from 9:45-10:15, then break for lunch from 10:15-10:45, and return to Science from 10:45-11:45.

Registration. At course registration time, students will be given information concerning course selection for the coming year. The information in this guide should be used in planning a program of students. Courses listed in this guide may be offered by Norfolk Public Schools as long as there is sufficient enrollment and available staff. *Please note that all courses are NOT available at each school.* The School Counseling and Guidance Department at each middle school will provide information on specific courses available at their site.

Students must work with their School Counselor to select appropriate elective courses and must submit their Course Request forms by the due date determined by each school. Class schedules will be provided to students on or before their first day of school. Adjustments will only be made when deemed necessary by the School Principal or designee. The following is a layout of a typical middle school schedule:

Bell 1	Language Arts
Bell 2	Language Arts
Bell 3	Science (Lunch)
Bell 4	Social Studies (Lunch)
Bell 5	Elective
Bell 6	Health & PE
Bell 7	Math
Bell 8	Math

Attendance Requirements

Regular school attendance is important to the academic development of the students. Excessive tardiness and absence from school often impedes academic growth. Both students and parents must accept responsibility for school attendance at the middle school level.

Medical appointments should be scheduled at times when the student will not miss instructional times, when possible. A student who will need to leave school during the day must bring a note signed by a parent/guardian that morning, and follow the school's sign-out procedures before leaving the campus. Students must attend a minimum of 75% of any class to be considered in attendance in that class for the day.

On days when a student must be absent from school, the student must bring a note, signed by the parent/guardian, that describes the reason for the absence. A student absent for more than five (5) consecutive days due to personal illness must bring a statement from a doctor or health clinic verifying the illness or condition that caused the extended absence from school. Students are responsible for obtaining and making up work missed during absences.

Should a student develop a questionable pattern of absences, the principal or designee may require a statement from a doctor or health clinic verifying an illness or condition that caused the absences. For those with five (5) or more unexcused absences, an *Attendance Agreement* will be required by the principal or designee in order to develop a plan for improved attendance.

Students who are absent seven (7) or more days (excused or unexcused) in a semester course, or fourteen (14) or more days (excused or unexcused) in a school year, will not be promoted or granted course credit regardless of their grades. Please refer to NPS Policy JED and the NPS Standards of Student Conduct for more information.

Truancy

The Code of Virginia 22.1-254 requires all students to attend school on a regular basis. Schools are required by law to refer a student to begin the truancy court process after the student accumulates seven (7) **unexcused** absences.

Homework and Grading

Homework may be required at all levels and is assigned a minimum of four nights a week. However, in some content areas homework may not be appropriate. Because homework is an extension of class work at an independent level, students should be held accountable for completing homework assignments and given credit for fulfilling the required tasks. Homework should be reviewed, marked, and returned within a reasonable period of time. Homework assignments should be reasonable in length, academically based, and meaningful to student learning.

All homework may be counted. Because of the variety of assignments that may be included as homework, some homework assignments may receive grades and some may receive checks for completion. The way in which homework is evaluated will be based on teacher discretion and should be clearly communicated to parents and students. In order to ensure that grading and accounting for homework assignments will be consistent across the district the following guidelines have been developed:

Homework will be assigned, in accordance with School Board Policy, and students will be held accountable for homework assignments. Teachers will maintain records of homework assignments (e.g. grades and/or frequency of completion). Teachers will also use the "Comments" section of the report card to note a concern or need for improvement.

Promotion and Retention Policies

Promotion and retention at the middle school level is based on academic performance. Students must successfully pass three of the four core classes, which must include Language Arts and Math, in order to be promoted. Final retention decisions are made at the end of the school year or Summer School term.

Summer School

("Middle School Summer Basic Skills Program")

Summer classes are offered to students who must repeat core courses not passed during the regular school year. Students who are required to attend summer school should obtain an application from their School Counseling and Guidance Department. Courses are offered based on the number of students needing the course and the availability of teachers. Regular class attendance and proper behavior is expected. Promotion is based on attendance, passing an end of program assessment(s), and passing final grade(s)

Grading Scale

А	93-100	В	83-86	С	73-76	D	64-66
A-	90-92	B-	80-82	C-	70-72	Е	Below 64
B+	87-89	C+	77-79	D+	67-69		

Standards of Learning Tests

Students must take all applicable end-of-course Virginia Standards of Learning (SOL) tests. The following SOL tests are administered in middle school:

Grade 6	Grade 7	Grade 8
Reading	Reading	Reading
Mathematics	Mathematics	Writing
	Algebra 1	Mathematics
	Civics & Economics	Algebra 1
	Earth Science	Geometry
		Civics & Economics
		World Geography
		Earth Science
		Biology

Purging/Expunging Grades

Any middle school student who enrolls in and successfully completes high school courses may receive high school credit, which counts toward meeting graduation requirements. These course grades become part of the high school transcript and are included in the student's high school grade point average (GPA). For any such courses, parents may request that grades be omitted from the student's transcript and the student not earn high school credit for the course.

Academic and Career Plans

All students will create an individualized Academic and Career Plan (ACP) during their 7th grade year based on their career and academic interests. School Counselors will assist students in determining their academic and career goals by providing interest, skills, and values assessments. Students will research various careers and create a written plan in preparation for future success.

Extra-Curricular Activities/Athletics

Students have the opportunity to participate in activities and sports based on their interests and the availability at each middle school. Club meetings and athletic team try-outs are announced in school. Students are responsible for conveying this information to parents/guardians. Please contact the main office at your school for more information.

Middle School Specialty Programs

NPS offers several specialty programs at schools throughout the district. Applications are required for these programs and are distributed through the School Counseling and Guidance Department at each school.

Academy of Discovery at Lakewood

Academy for Discovery at Lakewood (ADL) is a citywide 3rd through 8th grade school with an academic focus on Project Based Learning (grades 3 through 5) and the International Baccalaureate Middle Years Program (IB MYP, grades 6 through 8). The program challenges students through rigorous coursework, while teaching them skills to be successful in learning and life.

The Academy of International Studies at Rosemont

The Academy of International Studies (AOIS) at Rosemont is based on a thematic approach with a focus on world languages, world cultures, and military science (Navy League Cadets Program). Students can choose one of the following program options as a focus area: World Languages, Military Science, or World Languages and Military Science. The school is designed to meet the academic challenges of a rigorous course of study.

Pre-Medical, Health & Engineering Program at Blair

Blair Pre-Medical Health & Engineering Program is designed for middle school students with a passion for a future career in the medical, healthcare and engineering fields. The course of study for the Blair Specialty Program is advanced and rigorous, focusing on the curricular areas of science, robotics, English, and foreign language, with an emphasis on compacted science.

Young Scholars Program

Young Scholars is the middle years' magnet program of Norfolk Public Schools for highly motivated learners identified as gifted. This "school-within-a-school" is located at the Academy of International Studies at Rosemont. Specially trained faculty provides research-based instruction that is challenging, differentiated, and supportive to the development of critical thinking skills and positive habits of mind.

Virtual Virginia

Middle school and high school students currently have the option of enrolling in the Virginia Department of Education's (VDOE) Virtual Virginia classes. The course offering include pre-Advanced Placement (AP), honors, and AP classes, as well as academic electives and world languages. Virtual Virginia was designed to offer classes to students who might not otherwise be able to take these courses due to the lack of an available highly qualified instructor, too few students interested for the local school to offer the course, or scheduling conflicts within the school.

Each course may contains video segments, audio clips, whiteboard and online discussions as well as text. Teachers are available for telephone conversations with students throughout the school day via toll-free numbers. Virtual Virginia classes offer a rich multimedia learning environment that appeals to a variety of learning styles. Courses can be scheduled flexibly throughout the day, as courses do not have to be taken in "real" time.

Eligible students may enroll in Virtual Virginia through their local schools. Visit <u>Virtual Virginia</u> (www.virtualvirginia.org) for details about the program, including the course catalog, school registration information and more.

COURSE OFFERINGS

*Please note that course offerings vary per school. All courses are not offered at each school.



Art

At the middle school level, art provides opportunities for students to build upon the art knowledge and skills developed during their sequenced K- 5th grade art program. Students will use artistic processes and techniques and various media to explore big ideas and to express personal meaning in their artwork. They will also examine traditional and contemporary works of art to understand how artists have communicated visually across time and cultures, learn to analyze their own work and that of others, and develop visual literacy. Students who are planning to enroll in upper level art classes at the high school level should be encouraged to take the high school credit-bearing foundation course, Introduction to Art.

		ART			
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
ART6-18	05186	ART 6 (SEMESTER)	1	0	None
a variety of 2- and	3-dimensional m program. Studen	ster course is designed to provide students wite edia, to develop their understanding of the artists ts will also increase their capacity for visual lite y of works of art.	istic process ar	id build on ski	lls learned in the
ART6-36	05186	ART 6 (FULL YEAR)	2	0	None
		ogram. Students will also build their capacity for ariety of works of art. ART 7 (SEMESTER)	or visual literac	y by examinin	g the relationship of art None
3-dimensional me	dia while assistir	ster course focuses on sampling a variety of ar ng students in using artistic processes to sol ng, critiquing and responding to works of art fro	ve artistic prob	lems. Studer	
	05187	ART 7 (FULL YEAR)	2	0	None
ART7-36					
Course Descrip media while assis literacy skills by a	sting students in analyzing, critiqu	ong course focuses on developing technique developing their understanding of the artist ing and responding to works of art from a ve e cultural, and historical impact of artworks,	ic process. St ariety of cultur	udents will al es. Students	so enhance their visual will build art criticism

		ART			
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
ART8-36	05188	ART 8 (FULL YEAR)	2	0	None
previous art cours to solve artistic pre	es in a variety o oblems individu	ong course provides students with the oppo of in-depth art-making experiences. Studen ally and be able to reflect on their individua ngage in class discussions, critiquing histor	ts will utilize a I artistic proce	variety of 2- a ss and the pu	and 3- dimensional media
DIGART-36	05169	DIGITAL ART (FULL YEAR)	2	0	None
Course Descripti photography, anima		e is designed to be an introductory course of a ic design.	variety of digita	Il media, inclu	ding digital
AR1101	05154	INTRO TO ART	2	.5	None
includes journal wr used to satisfy the	iting/sketchbook graduation requ	atory course exposes the student to a variety a, drawing, painting, sculpture, crafts, printmal irement of one standard unit in Fine Arts or C na requirement of two sequential electives.	king, art history	and art critici	sm. This course may be
EXPTHR	05051	EXPLORATORY THEATER ARTS	1	0	None
		er course provides opportunities for students on and communication	to explore vario	ous aspects o	f informal drama and theatre
THART7 THART8	05077 05078	INTRODUCTION TO THEATER	1	0	None
		er course provides opportunities for students , audience etiquette, and theater terminology		ous aspects o	f drama including forensic

NORFOLK PUBLIC SCHOOLS COURSE DESCRIPTION GUIDE FOR SECONDARY STUDENTS | 2018-2019

English

The middle school curriculum provides a progressive of course expectations for middle school student learning and understanding in English Language Arts. By the time students complete middle school, they will have been exposed to essential skills, writing and reading content knowledge, and critical thinking processes required for success in English 9 and beyond. Students in grades 6 through 8 will learn skills aligned with the Virginia Standards of Learning. Students are expected to continue to apply knowledge, skills, and processes from Standard of Learning presented in previous grades as they build expertise in English Language Arts.

English Course Sequence



		ENGLISH			
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
LA1M60 LA1M61 (single block)	01034	ENGLISH 6	2	0	None
arratives, description iven to composition resent personal op roup communication rose and poetry. St	ons, and expl and style as nions, under n skills. Stud udents deve	ade, students continue to build upon skills previ lanations through the writing process. They plan s well as sentence formation, usage, and mecha stand differing points of view, distinguish betwe lents read for comprehension classic works in a lop critical reading and reasoning skills to under eading Test at the end of this course.	n, draft, revise, a anics. Students en fact and opir ddition to a vari	and edit their participate in nion, and ana ety of fiction a	writing. Special attention is classroom discussions, lyze the effectiveness of and nonfiction, including
LA2M60 LA2M61 (single block)	01034	ENGLISH 6 HONORS	2	0	B or better in Reading 5 and Writing 5 AND Teacher Recommendatio
erary forms and de rade honors studer	vices. The w its pay caref	ead, analyze, and evaluate classical and modern rriting process is used to plan, draft, revise, and ul attention to composition, tone, voice, and the Learning Reading Test at the end of this course	edit narratives, rules of standar	descriptions	and explanations. Sixth
LA1M70 LA1M71 (single block)	01035	ENGLISH 7	2	0	None
nat includes analyzi hrough varied and evising, editing, pro kills, research skills	ng and comp frequent writ ofreading, ar , and oral co	read and study a variety of fiction and nonfiction prehending texts. Language study includes build ing assignments, students build on their unders nd publishing. They use writing to develop ideas mmunication skills, and learn to adapt speaking o take the Virginia Standards of Learning Read	ting vocabulary, tanding of writin and learn new and listening to	learning abo g as a proce concepts. St o the audience	but grammar, and spelling. ss that includes drafting, udents also learn discussio e, topic, purpose, and
A2M70 A2M71 (single lock)	01035	ENGLISH 7 HONORS	2	0	B or better in LA6 AND Recommendation of LA6 Teacher OR successful completion of LA6H
nd nonfiction, build connections across t earning and the lear hallenge advanced	ing on an un time, place, a ming process learners (e.ç	se extends the standard program of studies for l derstanding of reading as a process that include and subject; perform as a practitioner or scholar s. Instruction is enriched and extended through g., problem-based learning, research, and inves rest at the end of this course.	es analyzing and in a discipline; research-based	d interpreting and self-asse practices de	and study a variety of fiction the text, they make ess and reflect on their signed to engage and
LA1M80 LA1M81 (single block)	01036	ENGLISH 8	2	0	None
hat includes analyzi hrough varied and evising, editing, pro riting. All students	ng and interp frequent writ ofreading, ar learn researc	read and study a variety of fiction and nonfictior preting the text. Language study includes buildin ing assignments, students build on their unders and publishing. Students practice a variety of writ ch skills and adapt speaking and writing skills to dards of Learning Reading and Writing Tests.	ng vocabulary, le tanding of writin ing forms inclue	earning abou g as a proce ling informati	t grammar, and spelling. ss that includes drafting, onal/technical and essay

LA2M80 LA2M81 (single block)	51036	ENGLISH 8 HONORS	2	0	B or better in LA7 AND Recommendation of LA7 Teacher OR successful completion of LA7H
and nonfiction, build connections across learning and the lear	ing on an un time, place a rning process learners (e.ç	se extends the standard program of studies for derstanding of reading as a process that inclu- and subject; perform as a practitioner or schol- s. Instruction is enriched and extended throug g., problem-based learning, research, and inv and Writing Tests.	ides analyzing an ar in a discipline; ih research-based	d interpreting and self-ass d practices d	g the text, they make ess and reflect on their esigned to engage and

Foreign Language | ESL

Learning a second language provides the learner with skills and experiences in another language and culture and provides a valuable 21st Century skill in an increasingly diverse world.

Foreign Language Course Sequence



		FOREIGN LANGUA	GE		
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
EXPFLG EXPFLG6-36	24040	EXPLORATORY FOREIGN LANGUAGE GRADE 6	1 2	0	None
tudents are introdu	uced to skills r	e is designed to promote interest and develop s necessary for language acquisition: reading, spe r topics are presented contextually. The language	eaking, listening	and writing, S	Students learn basic
LGEXP LGEXPFY	24040	EXPLORATORY FOREIGN LANGUAGE GRADE 7	1 2	0	None
tudents are introdu	uced to skills r	e is designed to promote interest and develop s lecessary for language acquisition: reading, spe r topics are presented contextually. The language	eaking, listening	and writing, S	Students learn basic
EXPFLGC EXPFLGF EXPFLGG EXPFLGL EXPFLGS	24400 24100 24250 24340 24050	CHINESE EXPLORATORY FRENCH EXPLORATORY GERMAN EXPLORATORY LATIN EXPLORATORY SPANISH EXPLORATORY	1 OR 2	0	None
tudent readiness f	for language st	ese courses introduces the fundamentals of the tudy. The students are introduced to skills nece arn basic vocabulary and culture. Grammar topi FRENCH YEAR 1	ssary for langua	age acquisition	n: reading, speaking,
Course Description	on: This cours earn to manipul re introduced a	e introduces the fundamentals of French by str late important structures of the language within as appropriate. The foundation of the French pr	essing the four a basic vocabu	skills of listeni lary and idiom	range. Relevant aspects
EL1102	24103	FRENCH YEAR 2	2	.5	French Year 1
peaking, reading, ocabulary are intro	and writing. St oduced and ma	e continues the fundamentals of French by stre tructures and vocabulary studied in French Yea astered. Culture and customs of French speaki guage usage remains the foundation of the Fre	r One are revie ng people also	wed. Additiona	al structures and
FL1201	24252	GERMAN YEAR 1	2	.5	B or better in English course previous year
vriting. Students le	arn to manipul are introduced	e introduces the fundamentals of German by st late important structures of the language within as appropriate. The foundation of the German	a basic vocabu	lary and idiom	range. Relevant aspects

FL1202	24253	GERMAN YEAR 2	2	.5	German Year 1
peaking, readin ocabulary are ir	g, and writing. St ntroduced and ma	e continues the fundamentals of German by str ructures and vocabulary studied in German Ye astered. Culture and customs of German speak guage usage remains the foundation of the Ger	ar One are revi ing people also	ewed. Additio	nal structures and
FL1301	24342	LATIN YEAR 1	2	.5	B or better in English course previous year
blaced on those diom range. Sou	of reading and w urce material for t	e introduces the fundamentals of Latin. The ski riting. Students learn to manipulate important s his introductory course centers on the customs developing concepts, skills, and positive attitude	tructures of the and history of	language with the Roman pe	nin a basic vocabulary and ople. The foundation of the
FL1302	24343	LATIN YEAR 2	2	.5	Latin Year 1
rammatical stru xperiences. The	ctures. Readings	d writing are emphasized as sentences and rea s reflect the legendary history of Rome and its a concepts, skills, and positive attitudes in the ar m. SPANISH YEAR 1	ctual military ex	kpansion, in c	onjunction with social
riting. Students	learn to manipul are introduced as	e introduces the fundamentals of Spanish by st ate important structures of the language within appropriate. The foundation of the Spanish pro	a basic vocabu	lary and idiom	n range. Relevant aspects c
L1402	24053	SPANISH YEAR 2	2	.5	Spanish Year 1
peaking, readin ocabulary are ir	g, and writing. St ntroduced and ma	e continues the fundamentals of Spanish by str ructures and vocabulary studied in Spanish Ye astered. Culture and customs of Spanish speak guage usage remains the foundation of the Spa	ar One are revi ing people also	ewed. Addition	nal structures and a focus of learning. The
L1501	24402	MANDARIN CHINESE YEAR 1	2	.5	B or better in English course previous year
containing basic l	anguage structure	velop the ability to communicate about themselves es. Students learn basic skills in listening, speakir a various social and academic settings.			
FL1502	24403	MANDARIN CHINESE YEAR 2	2	.5	Mandarin Chinese Year
an emphasis on eading materials	the ability to com s, and producing	continue to develop proficiency in all four langu municate orally and in various social and acade short writings using more complex sentences a e, vacation, and travel.	emic settings. E	mphasis is pl	aced on real-life situations,

Health, Safety and Physical Education

Physical education provides students with an ongoing commitment to ensure rigorous, relevant physical education standards that reflect disciplinary knowledge and research to prepare all students to be capable, responsible, and self-reliant citizens in a global society. Students will learn essential health concepts, develop understanding of health information, and actively advocate for their own health as well as the health of their peers, families and communities.

			AL EDUCA		
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
HPE6	08110	HEALTH, SAFETY, AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION GRADE 6	2	0	None
	sease preventior	e physical fitness, gymnastics, individual and d and control, drug education, mental health, nu			
		HEALTH, SAFETY, AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION GRADE 7 e provides students in grade 7 an orientation pe ls are taught through various games and sports			
Course Descrip	otion: This cours on activities. Skil	EDUCATION GRADE 7 e provides students in grade 7 an orientation pe	eriod in which st	tudents are ex	posed to a wide variety o
Course Descrip physical educati Topics studied in HPE8 Course Descrip learning situation	otion: This cours on activities. Skil n health are a co 08112 otion: This cours ns in football, bas	EDUCATION GRADE 7 e provides students in grade 7 an orientation pe ls are taught through various games and sports ntinuation of the sixth-grade curriculum. HEALTH, SAFETY, AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION	eriod in which sis s where large nu 2 to learn the skill I, and overall fit	tudents are exp umbers of stud 0 s and knowled	posed to a wide variety o ents may participate. None ge of rules of competitive

NORFOLK PUBLIC SCHOOLS COURSE DESCRIPTION GUIDE FOR SECONDARY STUDENTS | 2018-2019

History | Social Science

The history and social science instructional program, in keeping with the Standards of Quality and the Standards of Learning, seeks to assist students in acquiring the skills, knowledge, and attitudes necessary for effective citizen participation in a pluralistic American society and the world community. The program is designed to meet the varying needs, abilities, and interest of students.

History & Social Science Course Sequence



HISTORY & SOCIAL SCIENCE					
Course ID	State Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
SS1M10	04102	US I: UNITED STATES HISTORY TO 1865	2	0	None
historical and geo strengthened the United States hist	graphical ana union. Stude ory in chrono documents a	urse surveys the history of the United States from alytical skills to explore the early history of the Un nts will continue to learn fundamental concepts in logical sequence and learn about change and co and speeches that laid the foundation of American 's history.	ited States and n civics, econom ntinuity in our hi	to understand i lics, and geogr story. They wi	ideas and events that aphy as they student Il also study primary and
SS2M10	04102	HONORS US I: UNITED STATES HISTORY TO 1865	2	0	Scores of 450 or higher on Grade 5 Reading and Social Studies SOLs
chronological seq documents and s n the country's hi	uence and le peeches that story.	o learn fundamental concepts in civics, economic arn about change and continuity in our history. T laid the foundation of American ideals and institu US II: UNITED STATES HISTORY 1865 TO	hey will also stutions to examine	dy primary and e everyday life	d secondary source of people at different times
SS1M20	04103	PRESENT	2	0	None
1865. This course learn fundamenta social challenges	e covers the p I concepts in facing the na	s will continue to use skills of historical and geog eriod of the history of the United States from Rec civics, economics, and geography within the con- tion reunited after the civil war will be examined of mpacted the world's political and economic lands	construction to the text of the United chronologically,	ne present. Stu d States histor	udents should continue to y. Political, economic, and
SS2M20	04161	CIVICS AND ECONOMICS (HONORS 7)	2	0	Score of 450 or higher on Grade 6 Reading SOL
Course Description: This course is a survey study of civics and economics in the United States. Special emphasis is on the structure an functions of government and the basic sectors of the economy. Students investigate the process by which decisions are made in th American market economy and explain the government's role in it. The standards identify personal character traits, such as patriotism respect for the law, and a sense of civic duty, that facilitates thoughtful and effective participation in the civic life of an increasingly divers democratic society. Students take the Civics and Economics SOL at the end of this course.					
SS1M30	04161	CIVICS AND ECONOMICS	2	0	None
functions of gove American market respect for the lay	rnment and t economy an w, and a sens	rse is a survey study of civics and economics in the basic sectors of the economy. Students invide explain the government's role in it. The stand e of civic duty, that facilitates thoughtful and effentiates the Civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics SOL at the end of the civics and Economics at the end of the civics at the end of the civics and Economics at the end of the civics at the end of the	vestigate the pro lards identify pe ctive participatic	cess by which rsonal charact	n decisions are made in the er traits, such as patriotism

SS1100	04001	WORLD GEOGRAPHY	FY	1	Honors 7 Civics
focuses on the wo patterns. Using ge questions and to	orld's population eographic res apply geograp	s study the world's people, places, and environ on, cultural characteristics, landforms and climat ources, students will employ inquiry, research, ohic concepts and skills to their daily lives. Stud edit-bearing course.	te, economic de and technologi	velopment, and ical skills to as	d migration and settlement sk and answer geographic

Mathematics

Mathematics curricular choices are designed to provide extensive opportunities which meet a variety of student needs for college and career readiness.

Middle School Mathematics Course Sequence

Please note: Sequence may vary depending on student performance (grades and SOL scores) in each course.



		MATHEMATICS			
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
MA1M06	02036	MATH 6	2	0	None
Department of Educ foundations of algeb multiplication. Stude	cation. Students v ora. Student's will ents will have mat	vers the material outlined in the 6th Grade vill transition from the emphasis placed on be introduced to rational numbers and sol erial focused on building their understandi statistics, patterns, functions, and algebra	whole number ve problems th ng of number	r arithmetic in hat include ra sense, comp	n the elementary grades to atios, percent, and fractiona outation, estimation,
MA2M06	02036	MATH 6 HONORS	2	0	C or better in 5 th Grade Math, Teacher Recommendation, AND 450 or better on Math 5 SOL
Department of Educ Algebra 1 in 8th Gra oundations of algeb nultiplication. Stude naterial focused on	cation. This cours ade. Students will ora. Students will ents will work exter building their und	vers the material outlined in the 6th Grade e also incorporates standards from the 7th transition from the emphasis placed on wh be introduced to rational numbers and solven sively with integers as well as modeling a derstanding of number sense, computation ebra. Students will take the Grade 6 Math PRE-ALGEBRA 6	Grade Standa nole number a ve problems th and solving two setimation, n	ards of Learr rithmetic in t nat include ra o-step equat neasuremen	ning in order to prepare for he elementary grades to atios, percent, and fractional ions. Students will have t, geometry, probability,
Course Description	artment of Educat	vers the material outlined in the 6th, 7th, a ion. Students in this course are preparing	to take Algebr	a 1 in the 7th	n Grade. Students will
by the Virginia Depa transition from the e introduced to rationa extensively with inte understanding of nu	al numbers and s egers as well as n imber sense, com	on whole number arithmetic in the element olve problems that include ratios, percent, nodeling and solving multistep equations. S uputation, estimation, measurement, geom 8 Math SOL at the end of the course. MATH 7	and fractional Students will h	multiplicatio ave material	n. Students will work focused on building their

Course Description: This course covers the material outlined in the 7th and 8th Grade Math Standards of Learning as outlined by the Virginia Department of Education. Students in this course are preparing to take Algebra 1 in 8th Grade. Students will work extensively with integers as well as modeling and solving multistep equations. Students will have material focused on building their understanding of number sense, computation, estimation, measurement, geometry, probability, statistics, patterns, functions, and algebra. Students will take the Grade 7 Math SOL at the end of the course.						
MA1M08	02038	PRE-ALGEBRA 8	2	0	Math 7	
Course Description: This course covers the material outlined in the 8th Grade Math Standards of Learning as outlined by the Virginia Department of Education. Students in this course are preparing to take Algebra 1 in the 9" Grade. Students will work extensively with integers as well as modeling and solving multistep equations. Students will have material focused on building their understanding of number sense, computation, estimation, measurement, geometry, probability, statistics, patterns, functions, and algebra. Students will take the Grade 8 Math SOL at the end of the course.						
MA1102 MA1105 (Double-Block)	02052	ALGEBRA I	2	.5	Pass Math 8 475 on Math 8 SOL	
semester, emphasis is precision of language. understanding. The to evaluating formulas, s studied include simple solving. These topics reasoning and precisio	s placed on These are pics to be s imple opera operations are develop on of mathe st in probler	first rigorous study of formal algebra and begi the real number system, deductive and induct developed systematically with a proper balance tudied within the framework of the real number ations with polynomials and related problem so with rational expressions, solution and graphs bed within the framework of the real number sy matical language. Graphing calculators and co n solving and for verifying an algebraic solution	ive reasoning ce between the r system inclu olving. During s of linear and stem with atte computer softw	as applied to eory and pra de solving eo the second s quadratic eo ention to dedu are will be us	o algebraic proofs, and ctice essential for true quations and inequalities, emester, the topics to be quations and related problem uctive and inductive sed as a primary tool for	
MA1202 MA1204 (Double-Block)	02072	GEOMETRY	2	.5	Algebra I	
Course Description: This course addresses the formal study of plane and spatial geometry. The student analyzes, makes and tests conjectures, and draws conclusions based on definitions, postulates, and theorems relative to polygons, circles, right triangles, similarity, area, volume, and coordinate geometry in the plane and, where possible, space. Students investigate and interpret two- and three- dimensional objects; represent problem situations using geometric models; classify and apply relationships for congruent figures using properties of transformations; and deduce properties of figures using transformations and coordinates. Students develop an appreciation for an axiomatic system as they compare and contrast intuitive, inductive, and deductive reasoning. The Standard of Learning (SOL) Geometry end-of course test will be given.						

Music

The goal of music education in NPS is to ensure that all interested students have the opportunity for meaningful musical experiences incorporating knowledge and skill for successful learning. The program is sequentially structured in order to provide high quality music instruction and cultural enrichment focused on student achievement, performance skills, life-long learning connections and personal accomplishment. Opportunities are available for students to audition for select ensembles and gain the skills necessary to continue in music at the high school level.

MUSIC						
NPS Code	SCED	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)	
MU1M04	05110	BEGINNING CHORUS- 36	2	0	None	
Emphasis is pla skills and chora school assemb	aced on learning t al techniques. Per lies, annual winte	preparatory class for the middle school choral p o use the voice correctly and strengthening par formances are scheduled during each semester r and spring concerts, and any other concert da uirements may include in-school and out-of-sch	rt singing. Instruer. These perform ates which the g	ction includes nances include	development of basic musi e classroom performances,	
MU1M05	05110	INTERMEDIATE CHORUS- 36	2	0	Beginning Chorus or Instructor Approval	
concert dates v	which the group ad	nclude classroom performances, school assem ccepts. On recommendation of the instructor, s ary and performance requirements may include	tudents may be	eligible to aud	ition for District Chorus.	
concert dates v	which the group ad	ccepts. On recommendation of the instructor, s	tudents may be	eligible to aud	ition for District Chorus. nours.	
concert dates v Special uniform MU1M06 Course Descr course with ins disciplines and scheduled durit concerts, and a	05110 iption: This is the group deportmen ng each semester any other concert	ccepts. On recommendation of the instructor, s ary and performance requirements may include	2 ents without cho comment of music ces as designate mances, schoo be eligible to au	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ition for District Chorus. nours. Intermediate Chorus or Instructor Approval e may be scheduled into thi cal technique, choral her. Performances are annual winter and spring	
concert dates v Special uniform MU1M06 Course Descr course with ins disciplines and scheduled durit concerts, and a	05110 iption: This is the group deportmen ng each semester any other concert	ADVANCED CHORUS- 36 advanced level of middle school chorus. Stud Classroom instruction includes continued devel t. This chorus participates in school performan These performances Include classroom perfordates which the group accepts. Members may	2 ents without cho comment of music ces as designate mances, schoo be eligible to au	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ition for District Chorus. nours. Intermediate Chorus or Instructor Approval e may be scheduled into th cal technique, choral her. Performances are annual winter and spring	
Concert dates v Special uniform MU1M06 Course Descricourse with ins disciplines and scheduled durin concerts, and a may be necess MU1M01 Course Description of music and bac classroom perfection	vhich the group ad ns may be necess 05110 iption: This is the tructor approval. (group deportmen ng each semester any other concert ary and performa 05101 iption: This class asic band instrum ormances, school	ADVANCED CHORUS- 36 advanced level of middle school chorus. Stud Classroom instruction includes continued devel t. This chorus participates in school performan These performances Include classroom perfordates which the group accepts. Members may nce requirements may include in-school and ou	tudents may be e in-school and o 2 ents without cho opment of music ces as designate irmances, school be eligible to au ut-of-school hour 2 ng the band prog uring each seme s, and any other	0 oral experience notation, void d by the teac l assemblies, dition for Distristics o gram. Instruction ester. These p concert dates	ition for District Chorus. nours. Intermediate Chorus or Instructor Approval e may be scheduled into the al technique, choral her. Performances are annual winter and spring ict Chorus. Special uniform None on includes basic elements reformances include which the group accepts.	

		MUSIC			
NPS Code	SCED	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
undamentals w ach semester ther concert d ind out-of-scho	which will prepare These performar ates which the gro bol hours. Student	provides an opportunity for students to continu them for participation in the school's advanced ices include classroom performances, school a pup accepts. Special uniforms may be necessa s are eligible to audition for All City and/or Distri- tal. Students may furnish their own instrument	performing grou ssemblies, annuary and performa- rict Band with ins	ips. Performa ual winter and ance requirem structor appro	nces are scheduled during spring concerts, and any ents may include in-school val. Norfolk Public Schools
IU1M03	05101	ADVANCED BAND- 36	2	0	Intermediate Band or Instructor Approval
dditional perfo nnual winter a ours is require	ormances are sche nd spring concert ed. Students are e	ts to participate in the musical activities of their eduled during each semester. These performar s, and any other concert dates which the group ligible to audition for All City and/or District Bar students may furnish their own instrument or re	accepts. Attend d with instructor	ssroom perfor lance of perfo	mances, school assemblies rmances outside of school orfolk Public Schools has
IU1M07	05104	BEGINNING ORCHESTRA- 36	2	0	Grade 5 Strings or Instructor Approval
nstruction inclu performances in he group acce Practice outside	Ides elements of n nclude classroom ots. Special uniforn e of school hours l	provides an opportunity for students who have nusic and intermediate orchestra techniques. Poperformances, school assemblies, annual winter ms may be necessary and performance require s necessary in order to be successful. Norfolk F strument or rent from a local vendor if they cho	erformances are er and spring cor ments may inclu Public Schools ha	scheduled du certs, and any de in-school a	rring each semester. These y other concert dates which and out-of-school hours.
MU1M08	05104	INTERMEDIATE ORCHESTRA	2	0	Beginning Orchestra or Instructor Approval
Regional Orcho classroom perf accepts. Speci outside of scho	estra with instruct formances, schoo al uniforms may b ool hours is neces	allenging level of orchestral music is studied for approval. Performances are scheduled du l assemblies, annual winter and spring conce be necessary and performance requirements sary in order to be successful. Norfolk Public t or rent from a local vendor if they choose.	ring each seme erts, and any oth may include in-	ster. These p ner concert da school and o	erformances include ates which the group ut-of-school hours. Practic
ORCADV	05104	ADVANCED ORCHESTRA	2	0	Intermediate Orchestra or Instructor Approval
hat of an inte The Advanced scheduled dur spring concert of school hour	rmediate level. T I Orchestra may ing each semest s, and any other s is necessary ir	a advanced performing ensemble and stude hese students are expected to exhibit moti have opportunities to perform for communi- er. These performances include classroom concert dates which the group accepts. S n order to be successful. Norfolk Public Sch ent or rent from a local vendor if they choos	vation, self-dis- ty and civic org performances, pecial uniforms tools has instru	cipline, and r anizations. F school asse may be nec	responsibility to the group Performances are emblies, annual winter an essary. Practice outside

Science

The Science Standards of Learning for Virginia Public Schools identify academic content for essential components of the science curriculum, which progress in complexity as they are studied at various grade levels. The following strands are studied at the middle school level:

- Scientific Investigation, Reasoning, and Logic;
- Force, Motion, and Energy;
- Matter;
- Life Processes;
- Living Systems;
- Interrelationships in Earth/Space Systems;
- Earth Patterns, Cycles, and Change; and
- Earth Resources.

Additionally, the middles school science curriculum includes five key components of the science standards – 1) Goals; 2) K-12 Safety; 3) Instructional technology; 4) Investigate and Understand; and 5) Application – which are critical to student success in achieving science literacy.

Recommended Science Course Sequence



SCIENCE							
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)		
SCI6	03236	SCIENCE 6	2	0	None		
Course Description: The focus of the science 6 curriculum is to increase student growth and understanding in the disciplines of life science, physical science, and earth science. Students study the transformations of energy and matter, the role of the sun's energy in the earth's systems, properties of water, basic chemistry, the solar system and space exploration, the earth's atmosphere, and the management of the earth's natural resources. These topics will be explored through scientific processing, including data analysis, experimentation, making predictions, drawing conclusions, stating hypotheses and defining dependent and independent variables.							
SCI6H	03236	SCIENCE 6 HONORS	2	0	Score of 475 or higher on Science 5 SOL test		
life science, physica related to transform rigor. In addition, st Earth's atmosphere including data analy	Course Description: The focus of the honors science 6 curriculum is to increase student growth and understanding in the disciplines of life science, physical science, and earth science. Students are expected to demonstrate mastery of the essential knowledge and skills related to transformations of energy and matter, properties of water, and basic chemistry at the Science 8 - Physical Science level of rigor. In addition, students will examine the role of the sun's energy in the earth's systems, the solar system and space exploration, Earth's atmosphere, and the management of Earth's natural resources. These topics will be explored through scientific processing, including data analysis, experimentation, making predictions, drawing conclusions, stating hypotheses and defining dependent and independent variables.						
SCI7	03158	SCIENCE 7 – LIFE SCIENCE	2	0	None		
patterns, and relation organization and the and change as a re this level include or	onships in the e classification sult of the trar ganization and	of the science 7 curriculum is life science, the a living world. Students build on prior experience of organisms; the dynamic relationships amo asmission of genetic information from generation d mathematical analysis of data, manipulation of and reporting data using metric units (SI - Int	es related to thes ng organisms, po on to generation. of variables in ex	e concepts by pulations, con Scientific proc periments, ide	v exploring the cellular mmunities, and ecosystems; cessing and inquiry skills at		
SCI7H	03158	SCIENCE 7 HONORS	2	0	SCIENCE 6 HONORS		
Course Description: The focus of the honors science 7 curriculum includes essential knowledge and skills related to both Science 7 - Life Science and Science 8 - Physical Science. At the completion of this course, students will take the Science 8 Virginia Standards of Learning (SOL) test.							
SCI8	03159	SCIENCE 8 – PHYSICAL SCIENCE	2	0	None		
SCI8 03159 SCIENCE 8 – PHYSICAL SCIENCE 2 0 None Course Description: Physical Science continues to build on skills of systematic investigation with a clear focus on variables and repeated trials, validating conclusions using evidence and data, as well as planning and conducting research involving both classroom experimentation and literature reviews from written and electronic resources. An in-depth understanding of the nature and structure of matter and the characteristics of energy will be acquired. Topics emphasized also include the technological application of physical science principles, the organization and use of the periodic table; physical and chemical changes; nuclear reactions; temperature and heat; sound; light; electricity and magnetism; and work, force, and motion.							

SC1200	03051	GENERAL BIOLOGY	2	.5	Passing score on Grade 8 Science SOL		
Course Description: Biology provides students with one unit of high school credit. Such major topics as the cellular and chemical bases for life, systems in plants and animals, reproduction and development, genetics, evolution, and ecology are included. These topics will be explored through lecture, laboratory investigations, critical thinking and problem solving activities, demonstrations, and classroom discussions with an emphasis on the development of scientific process skills. This course meets the graduation requirement for science. An SOL Biology end-of course test will be given.							
SC1100	03001	EARTH SCIENCE	2	.5	Passing score on Grade 8 Science SOL		
Course Description: Earth Science involves the study of the earth and those areas directly associated with it. This course of study deals with materials of our natural environment and the processes that bring about changes. Geology, map reading, surface processes, plate tectonics, and environmental resources are covered extensively. Process skills and critical thinking will be emphasized throughout the study of the content. Laboratory investigations, problem solving activities, classroom discussions, demonstrations, lecture and research (during the instructional period and at home) are used to explore major Earth Science concepts. This course meets the graduation requirement for science. An SOL Earth Science end-of course test will be given.							

Career and Technical Education (CTE)

Business & Information Technology

BUSINESS & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY							
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)		
EXPKYB18 EXPKYB36	12005	KEYBOARDING	1 2	0	None		
Course Description: This course is designed for middle school students to develop and enhance touch skills for entering alphabetic, numeric, and symbol information on a keyboard. Students compose and produce personal, educational, and professional documents.							
COMPSOL	10010	COMPUTER SOLUTIONS	1	0	None		
on using basic touc	Course Description: Students are introduced to the world of business using the computer as a problem-solving tool. Emphasis is placed on using basic touch keyboarding skills to complete a variety of projects incorporating word processing, database, presentation, and spreadsheet software. Basic internet safety and computer maintenance issues are important components of this course.						
DIGIN DIGINFY	10900	DIGITAL INPUT TECHNOLOGY	1 2	0	None		
software, tablets, cl	oud computi	but Technologies introduces new and emerging in ng software applications, headsets/microphones, to prepare students for using tools that are becor	scanners, digita	al cameras, di	gital video cameras, mobile		
PENDING	12151	MAKE IT YOUR BUSINESS (YOUNG ENTREPRENEURS) 7 TH /8 TH GRADES	1	0	None		
Course Description: Students design, establish, and operate a small group or class business, producing a service or product that meets an identified school or community need. Emphasis is placed on the Introduction and application of business terminology, basic entrepreneurship concepts, and fundamental business principles.							
BA1201	12005	KEYBOARDING APPLICATIONS (FULL YEAR)	2	.5	None		
Course Description: This course is designed for secondary school students to develop and enhance touch skills for entering alphabetic, numeric, and symbol information on a keyboard. Students compose and produce a variety of personal, educational, and professional documents. The cooperative education model is available for this course. Students combine classroom instruction and supervised on-the-job training in an approved position with continuing supervision throughout the school year. Note: This course is offered to middle school students for high school credit.							

Family & Consumer Sciences Education

FAMILY AND CONSUMER SCIENCES EDUCATION						
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)	
HMGEXP6	19903	FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES EXPLORATORY I 6 TH GRADE	1	0	None	
Course Description: Family and Consumer Sciences (FACS) Exploratory I provides a foundation for managing individual, family, career, and community roles and responsibilities. In FACS Exploratory I, students focus on areas of individual growth such as personal goal achievement, responsibilities within the family, and accountability for personal safety and health. They also explore and practice financial management, clothing maintenance, food preparation, positive and caring relationships with others, and self-assessment as related to career exploration.						
HMGEXP7	19903	FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES EXPLORATORY II 7 TH GRADE	1	0	None	
foundation for mana individual developm environments and to	aging individua lent as well as o use nutrition	Consumer Sciences (FACS) Exploratory II is or al, family, work, and community roles and respon- their relationships and roles within the family un and wellness practices. Students also apply co e careers related to Family and Consumer Scie	nsibilities. In FA0 nit. They learn h nsumer and farr	CS Explorator ow to maintai	y II, students focus on their n their living and personal	
HMGEXP8	19903	FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES EXPLORATORY III 8 TH GRADE	1	0	None	
Course Description: Family and Consumer Sciences (FACS) Exploratory III is one of the middle school Family and Consumer Sciences courses that provides a foundation for managing individual, family, career, and community roles and responsibilities. In FACS III, students focus on their individual roles in the community as well as how the community influences individual development. Students develop change-management and conflict-resolution skills and examine how global concerns affect communities.						
HU1451	22904	INDEPENDENT LIVING 8 TH GRADE	2	.5	None	
Course Description: This course allows students to explore successful strategies for living independently by actively participating in practical problem solving focusing on relating to others, applying financial literacy, managing resources in the areas of apparel, nutrition and housing, planning for careers and making consumer choices in a global environment. Recommended for 8 th graders. This is a high school credit-bearing course.						

STEM (Technology Education)

TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION							
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)		
TECEXP18 TECEXP36	21051	INTRODUCTION TO TECHNOLOGY	1 2	0	None		
Course Description: Students study the resources of all technology, including tools, energy, materials, people, time, information, and capital. This also includes the problem-solving process and various hands-on activities. They explore up to six systems of technology, including medical, agricultural and related biotechnologies, energy and power, information and communication, transportation, manufacturing, and construction.							
INVIN18 INVIN36	21099	INVENTIONS AND INNOVATIONS	1 2	0	None		
	mporary techno	ake models of significant inventions that have plogical problems facing them, their community plutions.					
TECSYS18 TECSYS36	21051	TECHNOLOGICAL SYSTEMS	1 2	0	None		
systems work. Stu	dents will explo gain insight into	ombine resources and techniques to create sys ore, design, analyze, and evaluate technologica o how to approach the problems and opportunit	I systems. By si	mulating syst	ems and assessing their		
ST1351	21003	TECHNOLOGY FOUNDATIONS 8 TH GRADE	2	.5	None		
Course Description: In this beginning high school course, students acquire a foundation in technological material, energy, and information and apply processes associated with the technological thinker. Challenged by laboratory activities, students create new ideas and innovations, build systems, and analyze technological products to learn further how and why technology works. They work in groups to build and control systems using engineering design in the development of a technology. This is a high school credit-bearing course.							
ST1305	17106	ELECTRONICS SYSTEMS I 8 TH GRADE	2	.5	None		
Course Description: Electronic devices are everywhere in modern life and business, and, as a result, opportunities abound for any who should master the knowledge and skills required to design, alter, repair, and construct them. This course allows students the opportunity to explore principles of electricity, apply knowledge in mathematics and science, and conduct experiments with electronics. Students solve problems using simple electrical devices and circuits and build electronic projects using DC and AC devices and circuits.							
ST1312	21058	GEOSPATIAL TECHNOLOGY I 8 TH GRADE	2	.5	None		
		TECHNOLOGY EDUC	ATION				
--	---	--	---	--	--		
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)		
information systen technologies allow various tools, proc experiences emple	ns (GIS), global / students to exp cesses, and tech oy real-world sp	batial Technology program provides experience positioning systems (GPS), remote sensing (F plore and analyze the natural and human-made iniques to create, store, access, manipulate, a atial analysis models and guidelines for integra nd the limitations of such technologies.	RS), and mobile e world, from loc nd revise data to	technologies. al to global a o solve humar	Fundamentally, these nd beyond. Students use n challenges. These		
GATE2TECHI	21015	GATEWAY TO TECHNOLOGY CORE (PLTW) ADL ONLY	1	0	None		
		Schools with approved PLTW teachers are ab d robotics. ADL Only. GATEWAY TO TECHNOLOGY SPECIALTIES/AUTOMATION AND ROBOTICS (PLTW) 7 TH GRADE	le to offer this co	ourse that incl	udes competencies in		
provides for "the in technology." Only	nterest and ener PLTW member	ADL ONLY school course, as defined by Project Lead the gy of middle school students while incorporatii schools with approved PLTW teachers are ab d require at least one unit from the four include TECHNOLOGY OF ROBOTIC DESIGN/COMPUTER CONTROL AND AUTOMATION 8 TH GRADE ADL ONLY	ng national stan le to offer this co	dards In math ourse. To crea	ematics, science, and ate an emphasis, local		
transportation, and processing inform	d communication ation, and socia with computer s	ngage in a broad study of the technical aspect n systems. Topics include computer equipmen l/cultural impact of computers. Problem-solving ystems. Learning activities include experiences ufacturing.	t and operating activities challe	systems, prog enge students	gramming, control to design, program, and		

Other Electives

Other Electives					
NPS Code	SCED Code	NPS Course Title	Number of Semesters	Credits Per Semester	Prerequisite(s)
NAVYCAD6 NAVYCAD7 NAVYCAD8	09101	NAVY LEAGUE CADET CORPS	2	0	None
developed for y	Course Description: The Navy League Cadet Corps (NLCC) is the junior program of the U.S. Naval Sea Cadet Corps. It was developed for younger cadets, ages 10 through 13. The mission of the NLCC is to train cadets about the seagoing military services, community service, citizenship, and an understanding of discipline and teamwork so that they are prepared for membership in the				
AVID	22007	AVID (ADVANCEMENT VIA INDIVIDUAL DETERMINATION)	2	0	Administrative Placement
eventual enrolln	nent). Typic		t enable stu	dents to learn org	e students to pursue college readiness (and anizational and study skills, enhance their e to college education.
FPSOLVE	PENDING	FUTURE PROBLEM SOLVERS ADL ONLY	1	0	None
Course Description: This course is designed to provide students with the opportunity to develop the creative thinking skills necessary to adapt to a changing world. Students will learn specific problem-solving techniques. Future Problem Solving encourages students to employ divergent, flexible, and innovative thinking; it helps students to develop their reasoning ability and to learn the value of obtaining, analyzing, and synthesizing a variety of resources in order to predict future realities. This course encourages the thinking skills necessary to adapt to a changing world while spanning a variety of disciplines and content areas.					
READ180-6 READ180-7 READ180-8	01999	READ 180	2	0	Administrative Placement
Course Description: This course provides a personalized learning experience for students in Grades 4–12+, reading two or more years below grade level. READ 180 helps meet the instructional needs of teachers while helping students meet the rigorous expectations of the new standards and experience success on the new assessments. READ 180 uses the key instructional shifts to support teachers in enhancing their pedagogy and accelerate student achievement.					
MATH180-6 MATH180-7 MATH180-8	02999	MATH 180	2	0	Administrative Placement
Course Description: This course is a revolutionary math intervention program designed to address the needs of struggling students and their teachers equally, building students' confidence with mathematics, while providing teachers an ecosystem of support to ensure success.					

SOLR SOL6 SOLM SOLM6 SOLM7 SOLM8 SOLPRP	22003	SOL READING SOL ACCELERATION 6 SOL MATH SOL MATH 6 SOL MATH 7 SOL MATH 8 SOL PREP	2	0	Administrative Placement
instruction ca	n help strugglii	ng learners improve their basic sk	ills. Remedia	al programs are de	hematics to receive remediation. Remedial esigned to close the gap between what egular classroom and taught in another

HIGH SCHOOL INFORMATION



Graduation Requirements at a Glance

(Source: www.doe.virginia.gov)

Virginia's revised graduation requirements maintain high expectations for learning in English, math, science and history/social science while reducing the number of Standards of Learning (SOL) tests students must pass to earn a high school diploma. The new standards also implement the "Profile of a Virginia Graduate," which describes the knowledge, skills, attributes and experiences identified by employers, higher education and the state Board of Education as critical for future success.

Profile of a Virginia Graduate

A student meeting the Profile of a Virginia Graduate has achieved the commonwealth's high academic standards and graduates with workplace skills, a sense of community and civic responsibility and a career plan aligned with his or her interests and experiences.

The Five C's

In preparing students to meet the Profile of a Virginia Graduate, schools are required to ensure that students develop the following competencies known as the "Five C's":

- Critical thinking
- Creative thinking
- Communication
- Collaboration
- Citizenship

Career Exploration and Planning

The career-planning component of the Profile of a Virginia Graduate provides an opportunity for students to learn more about the employment options and career paths they first explored in elementary and middle school. While there is no specific career-related activity that a student must experience (such as an internship or job-shadowing assignment) to earn a diploma, school divisions must provide opportunities for students to learn about workplace expectations and career options in their own communities and elsewhere. By reducing the number of SOL tests

students must pass to earn a diploma, the new standards increase flexibility for schools to expand workbased and service-learning programs that promote college, career and civic readiness.

Standard and Verified Credits

The new graduation requirements are effective with students entering the ninth grade in the fall of 2018 (class of 2022). The number of standard credits for a Standard Diploma and Advanced Studies Diploma remain the same but the number of required verified credits — earned by passing a course in the content area and the associated end-of-course assessment — is reduced to five (one each in English reading, English writing, mathematics, science and history/social science) for both diplomas.

Standard Diploma: First-time ninth graders 2018-2019 and beyond

Subject Area	Standard Credits	Verified Credits
English	4	2
Mathematics	3	1
Laboratory Science	3	1
History and Social Sciences	3	1
Health and P.E.	2	0
World Language, Fine Arts or C.T.E.	2	0
Economics & Personal Finance	1	0
Electives	4	0
Student Selected Test	0	0
Total Credits	22	5

Advanced Studies Diploma: First-time ninth graders 2018-2019 and beyond

Subject Area	Standard Credits	Verified Credits
English	4	2
Mathematics	4	1
Laboratory Science	4	1
History and Social Sciences	4	1
Health and P.E.	2	0
World Language	3	0
Fine Arts or C.T.E.	1	0
Economics & Personal Finance	1	0
Electives	3	0
Total Credits	26	5

In English writing, a student may verify course mastery through a locally developed performance-based assessment. Performance assessments require students to apply what they have learned and provide an opportunity for students to demonstrate that they have acquired critical thinking, creative thinking, communication, collaboration and citizenship skills.

Credit Definitions:

Standard Unit of Credit: A standard unit of credit for graduation is based on a minimum of 140 clock hours of instruction and successful completion of the requirements of the course.

Verified Unit of Credit: A verified unit of credit for graduation is based on a minimum of 140 clock hours of instruction, successful completion of the requirements of the course, and the achievement by the student of a passing score on the end-of-course SOL test for that course or additional tests. (8 VAC 20-131-110)

High School Promotion Standards

Students will be classified as 9th, 10th, 11th and 12th graders on the basis of earning the required number of course and verified credits for the grade level. Course credit is earned on the basis of achieving and/or exceeding course standards.

Grade 9: To be classified a ninth grader a student must satisfy the requirements for promotion from the eighth grade.

Grade 9 to 10: To be classified a tenth grader a student must earn at least five (5) course credits at the end of 9th grade and one (1) verified credit.

Grade 10 to 11: To be classified an eleventh grader a student must earn at least ten (10) course credits at the end of 10th grade which include:

- English.....(2) credits
- Math.....(1) credit
- Earn Two (2) Verified Credits

Grade 11 to 12: To be classified a twelfth grader a student must have earned at least fifteen (15) course credits at the end of 11th grade which include:

- English.....(3) credits
- Math..... (2) credits
- Earn Four (4) Verified Credits

Students must also be able to complete the requirements for graduation by the following June.

Grading Scale

Grade	100% Scale	Definition			
А	93-100	Designates the status of a student who consistently demonstrates a thorough understanding and skill application in the content area			
A-	90-92	(e.g., SOL and curriculum objectives for the grade/course level.)			
B+	87-89	Designates the status of a student who demonstrates a high degree			
В	83-86	Designates the status of a student who demonstrates a high degree of understanding and skill application in the content area (e.g., SOL and curriculum objectives for the grade/course level).			
B-	80-82	and curricularit objectives for the grade/course level).			
C+	77-79	Designates the status of a student who demonstrates a satisfactory			
С	73-76	understanding and skill application in the content area (e.g., SOI and curriculum objectives for the grade/course level).			
C-	70-72	and curriculum objectives for the grade/course levely.			
D+	67-69	Designates the status of a student who needs significant practice and instructional experiences to acquire the knowledge of basic			
D	64-66	content and skills specified in the content area (e.g., SOL and curriculum objectives for the grade/course level).			
E	63 and below	Designates the status of a student who has not demonstrated the basic knowledge of content and/or skills specified and requires additional practice and instructional experiences in order to succeed (e.g., SOL and curriculum objectives for the grade/course level).			

Weighted Courses

Advanced Placement (AP) and selected International Baccalaureate (IB) courses carry a weighted value of .03 because they are more challenging courses requiring extra work. Honors credit-bearing courses carry a weighted value of .0125.

Honor Roll

The honor roll is a list of students who make exceptional grades each semester. Students will be included if:

- They earn no grade lower than an A- (A Honor Roll)
- They earn no grade lower than a B- (B Honor Roll)
- They earn no grade lower than a C- and have an overall GPA of 3.0 (B Average Honor Roll)

Grade-Point Average | Class Rank

High school students earn grades in each subject they take. These grades are recorded on the credit sheet or transcript each semester. Grades are averaged to determine a grade-point average (GPA) for all students taking 61 percent of their courses in regular education at a school site. The cumulative grade-point average is recorded on each semester's credit sheet.

A student's junior grade-point average is tabulated in October, after the beginning of their senior year. This grade-point average includes grades earned in all credit-bearing courses taken, beginning in middle school. The junior grade-point average is sent to colleges, the military, and scholarship sources at the student's request.

A student's senior grade-point average is tabulated after the first semester of the senior year and is recorded on the first semester credit sheet. This grade-point average is then forwarded to colleges, the military, and scholarship sources at the student's direction. A student's grade-point average determines his/her rank or class standing when graduating from high school. To be an honor graduate, you must earn a 3.0 grade-point average. The Valedictorian and Salutatorian of the graduating class are determined by the class rank as calculated after the first semester of the senior year.

Repeating Courses Previously Passed

Students may repeat a credit-bearing course previously passed in an effort to improve a grade earned as well as their grade point average. The grade earned in a course taken the second time will be recorded in the student's grade point average. The earlier grade will be replaced on the credit sheet with an "R" (repeated at a later date) and will not be counted in the grade point average. Credit will be counted only once. Repeating a course for a higher grade does not count in the five classes an athlete must take to be eligible for VHSL competition.

Repeatable Courses

There is a selection of approved courses that may be taken in multiple years to develop and enhance skills, which are identified in the course offering section. The student will be awarded credit for each semester where he/she earns a passing grade.

Early College Scholars Program

The Early College Scholars program allows eligible high school students to earn at least 15 hours of transferable college credit while completing the requirements for an Advanced Studies Diploma. The result is a more productive senior year and a substantial reduction in college tuition. Students earning a college degree in seven semesters instead of eight can save an average of \$5,000 in expenses.

To qualify for the Early College Scholars Program, a student must:

- Have a "B" average or better;
- Be pursuing an Advanced Studies Diploma or an Advanced Technical Diploma; and
- Take and complete college-level course work (i.e., Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, Cambridge, or dual enrollment) that will earn at least 15 transferable college credits.

Early College Scholars are supported by Virtual Virginia and the Commonwealth College Course Collaborative. Virtual Virginia provides statewide access to college-level courses while the Commonwealth College Course Collaborative defines the subjects high school students can complete and receive college degree credit from participating public and private colleges and universities.

Virginia Plan for Dual Enrollment

Between Virginia Public Schools and Community Colleges

In the summer of 2008, a revised collaborative agreement entitled the "Virginia Plan for Dual Enrollment between Virginia Public Schools and Community Colleges" was signed. This agreement provides a statewide framework for dual enrollment arrangements between Virginia public schools and community colleges. These arrangements may be made at the local level, i.e., between the representatives of boards of the participating public school and the participating community college authorized to contract such agreements.

They may be formed in three distinct ways:

- First, high school students may be enrolled in the regularly scheduled college credit courses with the other students taught at the community college.
- Second, high school students may be enrolled in specially scheduled college credit courses conducted exclusively for high school students taught at the high school.
- Third, high school students may be enrolled in specially scheduled college credit courses conducted exclusively for high school students taught at the community college.

For further information see:

<u>Virginia Plan for Dual Enrollment between Virginia Public Schools and Community Colleges</u> (PDF) All dual enrollment courses may be counted toward the 15 college credits required for a student to become an "Early College Scholar." Certain dual enrollment courses may also qualify as part of the Commonwealth College Course Collaborative. This collaborative, involving all Virginia two- and four-year colleges and universities except Virginia Military Institute, provides a set of academic courses that fully transfer as core requirements and degree credits.

High School Specialty Programs

Granby High School -International Baccalaureate Diploma Program

Granby High School is a member of the International Baccalaureate Organization (IBO) and has been authorized to offer the International Baccalaureate Diploma Program since 1998. This program is a twoyear academically rigorous curriculum intended for juniors and seniors who desire in-depth scholastic preparation for college or university. The International Baccalaureate Organization "aims to develop inquiring, knowledgeable, and caring young people with adaptable skills to tackle society's complex challenges and who will help to make a better and more peaceful world".

The IB program emphasizes teaching students how to learn and encourages them to "value learning as an essential, integral part of their everyday lives," and cultivates students' intellectual, social, emotional, and physical well-being in addition to their cognitive development. Students who complete the IB Diploma Program enter college with the communication and critical thinking skills needed to be successful in our global society (IB Parent Pack, 2015). Teaching in the program is based on inquiry, focused on conceptual understanding, developed in local and global contexts, focused on effective teamwork and collaboration, differentiated to meet the needs of all learners, informed by formative and summative assessment (IB Approaches to Teaching).

Lake Taylor High School -Academy of Leadership and Military Science

The Academy of Leadership and Military Science is a collaborative venture between Norfolk Public Schools and a number of community, private sector, government, higher education, and military agencies.

The small learning community of the Academy is comprised of cluster scheduling of all core, foreign language, naval science, leadership, and dual credit college classes as well as year-round internships with community partners.



Maury High School -Medical and Health Studies Program

The Medical and Health Specialties Program at Maury High School was formed in 1986 to initiate early preparation of junior and senior level students, particularly minorities and females, for careers in health professions through academic coursework and motivational counseling. Through a special collaboration between Norfolk Public Schools and the Eastern Virginia Medical School many unique experiences enrich and enhance the science coursework for select students. Admission to this program is by application and entry occurs ONLY for rising freshmen students.

Norview High School -Leadership Center for the Sciences and Engineering

LCSE is a smaller learning community within Norview High School, which consists of high-performing students enrolled in a rigorous curriculum with considerable emphasis in math and science content. LCSE students also receive formal instruction in leadership development. Although designed to guide students toward possible college degrees and careers in engineering, scientific research, math and technology, the ultimate goal of LCSE is to graduate students equipped with the knowledge and skill to serve in leadership roles in their community.

Booker T. Washington High School -Academy of the Arts

The Visual and Performing Arts Academy of Booker T. Washington High School, offers the opportunity for students who have an interest in the arts to select courses that prepare them for postsecondary advanced studies or for a faster entry into arts-related occupations. The balance between artistic development and academic preparation is at the heart of the Academy program. Students are exposed to the humanities and have the opportunity to select a course of study that will best meet their needs and interests.

Rigorous Extra-Curricular Activities in Arts and Sciences

Norfolk Science, Technology, and Advanced Research, or NORSTAR*

*applicable to rising 8th grade students considering applying to high school program

Norfolk Science, Technology and Advanced Research, or NORSTAR, is a student-driven, STEMinfused program designed to help gifted and high-ability students in grades 9-12 further their skills in science, technology, engineering, and math. NORSTAR students research and investigate STEM- related topics of their choosing, and work alongside peer-mentors, teacher-mentors, and expert mentors to design and build solutions to real-world problems.

NORSTAR students also participate in STEM-based competitions in Hampton Roads and beyond, including the Tidewater Science and Engineering Fair at Old Dominion University. Students work with instructors to select competitions which best match their areas of interest and academic strengths.

Students should leave the NORSTAR program equipped with the necessary knowledge and experience to successfully pursue higher education and/or advanced training in a STEM-related field. Participants do not have to decide on a specific STEM area to thrive in NORSTAR. NORSTAR peers, instructors, expert mentors, and staff will help guide students to investigate topics that agree with students' interests and academic strengths.

NORSTAR Components

The NORSTAR program is structured into four major academic components: 1) Goal-setting, 2) Projects, 3) Competitions, and 4) Presentations. Each component is designed to work with the others, much like the gears of a machine. Opportunities for specialized STEM training is woven into the Projects and Competitions components. Soft skills, such as networking and communications skills are part of the Presentation component. Finally, goal setting and self-reflection are valuable skills that successful professionals possess, and students will strengthen these skills as part of the NORSTAR curriculum. Each of the four components is discussed in details later in the NORSTAR Student Handbook.

Governor's School for the Arts

The Governor's School for the Arts (GSA) is a regional secondary visual and performing arts school sponsored by the Virginia Department of Education and local school divisions. It is one of the specialized Virginia public schools designated as "Governor's Schools" with a mission to provide intensified educational opportunities for gifted and talented students.

GSA provides pre-professional, individualized and focused instructional programs in dance, instrumental

and vocal music, musical theatre, theatre and visual arts for students with a high degree of innate talent and potential for growth. Students take academic classes at their regular high schools in the morning and attend GSA in the afternoon for three hours daily during the regular academic year. Transportation to and from GSA is provided by NPS. Classes may be individual lessons, small or large groups, or rehearsals. The average class size is 12. Students may earn three credits for each year they attend GSA. There is NO tuition charge. Applications are available from school counselors.

Strolling Silver Strings

Any member of a NPS high school orchestra may audition for this prestigious program which has performed locally, nationally and internationally. The students' repertoire ranges from classical themes to popular melodies. Students are expected to perform as soloists on various selections, and the entire repertoire is to be performed from memory. Students may see their school's music instructor to schedule an audition.

Jazz Ensemble

Any member of a NPS high school band may audition for this program. These students study jazz, theory, literature, and improvisation in the context of a performing ensemble. Repertoire encompasses all styles of jazz music idiom, from big band to combo playing. All students are expected to perform as soloists on various selections. Since this is a showcase performing ensemble, participants must play with near professional tone quality and must be able to exhibit advanced proficiency on their instruments. Students may see their school's music instructor to schedule an audition.



Athletics and Other Extracurricular Activities

Norfolk Public Schools offers a variety of opportunities for students to participate in extracurricular activities on the school, district, state, and national levels. Students should check with their school Athletic Director, Career and Technical Education Teachers, Fine Arts Teachers, and School Counselors for specifics at their school.

Virginia High School League (VHSL) Scholarship Rule

The VHSL regulates a variety of interschool competitions across the state of Virginia for activities including theater, scholastic bowl, literary publications, forensics, cheerleading, and other athletic competitions.

Students should check with their school athletic director, coach, or activity sponsor about specific eligibility rules but at a minimum:

A student shall not have reached the age of 19 on or before August 1 of the school year in which he/she wishes to compete.

Norfolk Public School's 2.0 Grade Point Average (GPA) Requirement:

- A 2.0 GPA requirement will be required for participation in all VHSL sanctioned activities.
- GPA will be based on all courses taken for credit.
- GPA will be based on semester grades.
- The grading scale shall be the current scale used by NPS, including weighted classes.

Credit for summer school must be applied to the preceding semester. Transfer students should check with the Athletic Director for specific eligibility requirements

Students shall have one appeal or probation period during their middle school eligibility (8th grade only) and one appeal or probation period during their high school eligibility (11th or 12th grade only) if they fall below the minimum GPA requirements to meet VHSL standards. Tutorial classes will be available for all student athletes and attendance shall be mandatory for those who have GPA's below the 2.0 average and taking a waiver. The tutorial classes shall have tutors available to assist students. Each school shall hire an academic advisor who is paid a supplement to monitor grades and attendance weekly and supervise the study halls. Coaches will also assist with the monitoring of grades and the supervision of tutorial classes. The tutorial classes are held Monday through Thursday throughout the school year.

Students who are classified as having a disability whose eligibility must be determined according to applicable federal and state laws, who fall below the 2.0 average, will be examined on an individual basis. Waivers shall only be granted by the superintendent or his designee.

Students with disabilities who request a waiver must be making standard progress in those courses taken as determined by the student's Individual Education Plan (IEP).

Students, who have a cumulative average above the 2.0, but fall below a 2.0 for the semester, will be allowed to average the semester average with the cumulative average. If the cumulative average is still above 2.0, the student shall be allowed to participate.

Ninth graders are encouraged to try out for high school sports. Fall sports begin in August, winter sports begin in November, and spring sports begin in February. Each student must have a physical before participating in the Norfolk Public Schools sports program. The physical may be given by the student's doctor or by a doctor employed by the high school. Students should check with their school for a schedule of when physicals are offered. A fee is required for all physicals.

First time ninth grade students will be eligible to participate in VHSL extracurricular activities using the VHSL requirements for one (1) academic year only. At the end of their first year of high school, the students must meet the increased academic requirements (2.0 GPA) of Norfolk Public Schools to participate.

Athletes are eligible to ride the late bus home after each day's practice. Usually, these buses leave the high school from 5:30 to 7:00 p.m.

For more specific details, see your high school's athletic director, school counselor, or the NPS Website.

NCAA Eligibility

Students planning to participate in intercollegiate activities at an NCAA Division I or II institution must have their academic and amateurism status certified by the NCAA Eligibility Center. The NCAA recommends you register during your sophomore year of high school. Check with your school counselor for details.



Division I Core Academic Requirements

For students enrolling in college after August 1, 2016:

To be eligible to practice, compete and receive athletic scholarships in your first full-time year at a division I school you must graduate high school and meet ALL the following requirements:

- Complete 16 NCAA core courses:
 - Four years of English;
 - Three years of math (Algebra I or higher);
 - Two years of natural/physical science (including one year of lab science if your high school offers it);
 - Two years social science;
 - One additional year of English, math or natural/physical science;
 - Four additional years from the areas of English, math, natural/physical science social science, foreign language, comparative religion or philosophy.
- Complete 10 core courses, in the areas of English, math or natural/physical science, before the start of the students' seventh semester of high school. Once a student begins the seventh semester the student may not repeat or replace any of those 10 courses for GPA improvement.
- Earn at least a 2.3 GPA in the core courses.
- Earn an SAT combined score or ACT sum score that matches the core-course GPA on the Division I sliding scale for students enrolling on or after August 1, 2016.

Division II Core Academic Requirements

Division II eligibility requirements will change for students who enroll in college after August 1, 2018. For students who enroll before this date, the requirements are that a student must graduate high school and meet ALL the following:

- Complete 16 core courses
 - Three years of English;
 - Two years of math (algebra 1 or higher);
 - Two years of natural/physical science (including one year of lab science if your high school offers it);
 - o Three additional years of English, math or natural/physical science;
 - Two years of social science;
 - Four additional years of English, math, natural/physical science, social science, foreign language, comparative religion or philosophy.
- Earn at least a 2.0 GPA in core courses.
- Earn an SAT combined score of 820 or an ACT sum score of 68.

Division III does not use the NCAA Eligibility center. Students should check with the school to determine amateurism and eligibility requirements for sports.

For more information on provisions for students with disabilities, the GED and eligibility waivers please contact NCAA at <u>Course Description KL Update Summer 2018.docx</u>.

School Board Members

Dr. Noëlle M. Gabriel Chair

Mr. Carlos Clanton Vice Chair

Ms. Tanya Bhasin Member

Ms. Lauren Campsen Member

Mr. Rodney A. Jordan Member

Mrs. Adale Martin Member

Ms. Christine Smith Member

TBD Student Representative

•••••

Dr. Sharon Brydsong Acting Superintendent

Dr. Michael Cataldo Acting Deputy Superintendent of Academic Affairs

Mr. Bruce Brady Acting Executive Director, Curriculum & Instruction

Mr. John Coleman Executive Director, Secondary Education

Mrs. April C. Harmon Senior Coordinator, School Counseling & Guidance